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CERTIFICATE AS TO PARTIES, RULINGS AND RELATED CASES
Pursuant to Federal Rule of Appellate Procedure 28(a)(1), and D.C. Circuit

Rule 28(a)(1), counsel for Amicus Curiae Landmark Legal Foundation hereby

submits the following Certificate as to Parties, Rulings and Related Cases.

1. Parties

a. Plaintiff-Appellees in Case No. 1:25-00766
The Plaintiffs-Appellees in this case are J.G.G., G.F.F., ].G.O., W.G.H., and

JLAV.

b. Defendants-Appellees Case No. 1:25-00766

The Defendants-Appellees in this case are Donald J. Trump, Pamela Bondi,
Kristi Noem, United States Department of Homeland Security, Madison Sheahan,
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement, Marco Rubio, United States

Department of State.

c. Intervenors

Based upon the Court’s docket sheet, Amicus Curiae Landmark Legal
Foundation is unaware of any entities that have thus far moved to intervene in the

present case.

d. Parties Below



The following parties appear on the official service list maintained by the

U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia.

1. Plaintiffs

J.G.C.

G.FF

J.G.O.

W.G.H.

J.AV.

1. Defendants

Donald J. Trump in his official capacity

Pamela J. Bondi, in her official capacity

Kristi Noem, in her official capacity

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Madison Sheahan, in her official capacity

U.S. Immigrations and Customs Enforcement

Marco Rubio, in his official capacity



U.S. State Department

1ii.  Movants

The Honorable Brandon Gill

Janice Wolk Grenadier

John W. Keker

Robert A. Van Nest

Elliot R. Peters

Laurie Carr Mims

Coolidge Reagan Fdn.

1v. Amicus

Mark J. Rozell

Heidi Kitrosser

Mitchel A. Sollenberger

2. Rulings Under Review

Defendants-Appellants seek immediate stay pending appeal, or in the
alternative, a writ of mandamus of the following order issued by Judge Boasberg of

the District Court:



Court’s Order and Memorandum Opinion entered April 16, 2025 (ECF
Nos. 80 & 81) in J.G.G., et al., v. Trump (Case No.: 1:25-cv-00766-JEB)

(beginning on p. 35 of Defendants-Appellants Notice of Appeal).

3. Case Previously Before the Court and Related Cases

The case was previously before the Court in case no. 25-5067 (J.G.G. et al.
v. Trump et al.) and 25-5068 (J.G.G. et al. v. Trump et al.). Counsel is aware of the

following related cases:
AARP & WMM.v. Trump et al., No. 24A1007 (U.S. Supreme Court)
AARP. & WMM.v. Trump et al., No. 1:25-cv-00059-H (N.D. Tex.)
AARP & WMM.v. Trump et al., No. TBD (5th Cir.)

/s/Richard P. Hutchison

Richard P. Hutchison

Counsel of Record

Landmark Legal Foundation

3100 Broadway, Suite 1210

Kansas City, MO 64111

(816) 931-5559

Email: pete.hutch@landmarklegal.org
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STATEMENT REGARDING CONSENT TO FILE AND SEPARATE
BRIEFING

Counsel for Amicus Curiae requested consent of counsel of record, via
email, during the morning of April 23, 2025. As of 5:00 pm Central Time neither
party had either consented or objected to the filing of this brief.

Pursuant to Circuit Rule 29(d), Amicus Curiae certifies that a separate brief
is necessary to provide the factual context surrounding a crucial and controlling
district court decision on the timing at which a party is obligated to comply with an

injunction.

CORPORATE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
Under Fed. R. App. P. 26.1 and D.C. Cir. Rules 27(a)(4) and 28(a)(1)(A),
Amicus Curiae submits the following corporate disclosure statement:
Amicus Curiae is a non-profit, public interest legal organization. It has no

parent corporations and does not issue stock.

/s/ Richard P_Hutchison

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

Pertinent materials are contained in Defendants-Appellant’s motion.



INTEREST OF AMICUS CURIAE!
Landmark Legal Foundation (“Landmark”) is a national public interest law
firm committed to preserving the principles of limited government, separation of
powers, federalism, advancing an originalist approach to the Constitution, and

defending individual rights and responsibilities.

ARGUMENT

Defendants-Appellants rely on Landmark Legal Fdn. v. EPA, 272 F. Supp.
2d 70 (D.D.C. 2003) as controlling precedent that defendants are under no “judicial
compulsion” to comply with injunctive relief until that relief is recorded in writing.
Def. Appl. Emergency Motion For Stay at 17 (“Mot. for Stay”). Indeed,
Defendants-Appellants note that the 7:25 pm minute order issued by the presiding
judge did not contain language referenced in a hearing held earlier that day. Mot.
for Stay at 5. Specifically, Defendants-Appellants note the presiding judge’s oral
statement “to turn around planes or to return already-removed aliens” was not

present in the order. Id.

' No counsel for a party authored this brief in whole or in part, and no counsel or
party made a monetary contribution intended to fund the preparation or submission
of this brief. No person other than Amicus Curiae, its members, or its counsel
made a monetary contribution to its preparation or submission. See Fed. R. App.
29(c)(5).



The importance of memorializing an injunctive order to ensure compliance
is demonstrated in Landmark Legal Fdn. v. EPA. As Plaintiff in that case, Amicus
Curiae is in a unique position to provide the factual context underlying a district
court’s decision to not hold a high ranking government official in civil contempt —
including providing a true and accurate copy of the hearing transcript wherein the
district court notified the parties that it would issue an order enjoining EPA.

The facts underlying Landmark Legal Fdn. v. EPA are not complicated.
Landmark submitted a Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) request to the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) seeking agency records relating to the
issuance of regulations slated to be issued in the final months of the Clinton
administration. EPA dragged its feet in responding to Landmark’s request,
prompting the initiation of a lawsuit. The imminent conclusion of the Clinton
Administration, coupled with concerns that potentially responsive information
could be destroyed during any transition period, spurred Landmark to seek a
preliminary injunction enjoining EPA. Landmark submitted its motion on January
3,2001.

A. Preliminary Injunction Hearing

Shortly thereafter, on January 19, 2001, Judge Royce C. Lamberth, acting as

the emergency judge for the District Court for the District of Columbia, presided

10



over Landmark’s preliminary injunction hearing. At the conclusion of the hearing,

the following discussion occurred:

THE COURT: I'll tell you, I don’t think there is anything else you can say
that is going to keep me from entering this preliminary injunction. I think in light
of all of the violations that we’ve talked about here, the Court should not give the
presumption of regularity to the agency to think that the agency will carry out its
duties here. The plaintiff’s motion for a preliminary injunction is granted. The
Court will order that the agency takes steps to ensure the preservation of any of this
information. I’ll issue a written order this afternoon based on the hearing we’ve
had today.

MR. HUMPHREYS (attorney representing EPA): Okay.
THE COURT: The EPA is enjoined from transporting, removing, or in any
way tampering with any information potentially responsive to Landmark Legal

Foundation’s September 7th FOIA request.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Okay. Now, is that — [ want to get clarity from the
Court. You’ve said that — if you would just read that order, Judge, one more time.

THE COURT: Okay. I’m reading their motion from their proposed order.
The only thing I may add to their proposed order is ‘EPA and its agents and
officials,” to make sure that people understand they’re personally accountable to

the extent they learn of the order.

MR. HUMPHREYS: All right. So the extent of the order is basically just
not to move, or tamper, or transport the documents?

THE COURT: Right.
MR. HUMPHREYS: And that’s the extent of it?
THE COURT: Right, pending further order of the court.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, thank you very much, Judge.

11



THE COURT: I'll consult with Judge Roberts about whether he wants to
keep the case or whether he’s going to transfer the case, but that’s all I need to do
for today.

Anything else the plaintiff wants to say?

MR. HUTCHINSON (sic) (attorney for Landmark): Not at this time,
Your Honor. Thank you. And is there a — will you be adding the language that you

THE COURT: Yes. I’'ll have a written order shortly. I’ve got another
hearing with 34 lawyers in the next courtroom I’ve got to go do, but as soon as I
finish it, I’ll be back.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Judge, could I ask the Court’s indulgence — I know
you’re in a hurry — for just 30 seconds? I don’t have a copy of that order. I’d like to
maybe comment on it. I’'m not so sure I will, but I just want to make sure — I want
to get clarification since this Court has ruled against the agency.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. HUMPHREYS: The Court’s indulgence for just a motion.

(Brief pause in proceedings)

MR. HUMPHREYS: Judge, I can live with this order.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Thank you very much.

THE COURT: All right.

(Whereupon, the proceedings in the above-entitled matter were adjourned at 10:27
a.m.)?

2 Amicus Curiae attaches as Exhibit 2 a complete and accurate copy of the
transcript of temporary restraining order and/or preliminary injunction hearing held
on January 19, 2001.
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Transcript of Temporary Restraining Order and/or Preliminary Injunction Hearing
Before the Honorable Royce C. Lamberth, United States District Judge, January
19, 2001 (filed March 26, 2001), 29-31.

The importance of the written injunction becomes clear after reviewing this
transcript: counsel for EPA (Mr. Humphreys) initially requested to read the written
order to ensure the government understood its obligations. Then counsel for EPA
sought leave from the court to again review the written order prior to agreeing to
its contents. Review of the written injunction thus ensured parties understood their
obligations.

During the hearing, the court explained that it would add language to the
proposed written order: “I’ve got another hearing with 34 lawyers in the next
courtroom I’ve got to go do, but as soon as I finish it, I’ll be back.” The delay
proved crucial as it was later determined that EPA and high ranking officials
(including then-Administrator Carol Browner) had engaged in conduct that could

have been contumacious.

B. Preliminary Injunction Order
Later in the day, Judge Lamberth issued a written order granting Landmark’s

application for preliminary injunction. The order enjoined EPA and its agents and

13



employees from removing or in any way tampering with information potentially
responsive to Landmark’s FOIA request.’

The timing of when Judge Lamberth signed and distributed a written order
proved crucial in the litigation because EPA later revealed that it had deleted files
residing on computer hard drives that potentially had contained records responsive
to Landmark’s request. It appeared that high ranking officials, specifically then-
Administrator Carol Browner had possibly violated the court’s order. Sometime in
the day, Ms. Browner had directed tech officials for EPA to delete the contents of
her hard drive — in apparent violation of the injunction.

The court, however, declined to hold Ms. Browner in contempt. While it
was probable that Ms. Browner’s directive to delete the contents of her hard drive
had occurred subsequent to the preliminary injunction hearing that had concluded
at 10:27 AM, 1t was unclear whether her directive occurred after the court’s
issuance of the written injunction. Landmark Legal Fdn. v. EPA, 272 F. Supp. 2d at
84.

Dispositive to the court’s decision to not hold Ms. Browner in contempt was
the acknowledgment that, “to become effective, an injunction must be reduced to

writing.” 1d. at 83. And although the court had stated at the preliminary injunction

3 Amicus Curiae attaches as Exhibit 3 a complete and accurate copy of the January
19, 2001, order.
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hearing that it intended to enjoin EPA officials via judicial order, such order did not
become operative until written and transmitted to the parties. Conduct prior to the

written order could not be the basis for a contempt finding. Id. at 84.

CONCLUSION
Amicus Curiae Landmark submits this brief to present factual context
surrounding the circumstances where a district court in the District of Columbia

considered an issue crucial to the present litigation.

Dated: April 23, 2025 Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Richard P_Hutchison

Richard P. Hutchison

Counsel of Record

Landmark Legal Foundation

3100 Broadway, Suite 1210

Kansas City, MO 64111

(816) 931-5559

Email: pete.hutch@landmarklegal.org

Michael J. O’Neill

Matthew C. Forys

Landmark Legal Foundation
19415 Deerfield Ave., Suite 312
Leesburg, VA 20176

(703) 554-6100
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
I hereby certify that the foregoing motion and proposed brief complies with
the word limits of Federal Rules of Appellate Procedure because the brief contains
1,401 words. The brief complies with the typeface and type-style requirements of
Federal Rules of Appellate Procedures 29 and 32 because it has been prepared
using Microsoft Word 365 in proportionally spaced 14-point Times New Roman

typeface.

Dated: April 23, 2025 /s/Richard P. Hutchison
Richard P. Hutchison

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that on April 23, 2025, I electronically filed the foregoing
with the Clerk of the Court for the United States Court of Appeals for the District
of Columbia by using the CM/ECF system. I certify that all participants in this
case are registered CM/ECF users and that service will be accomplished using the
CM/ECF system.

Dated: April 23, 2025 /s/Richard P. Hutchison
Richard P. Hutchison
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA V
RECGE!

LANDMARK LEGAL FOUNDATION, )
) JRN 3 2001
Plaintiff, ) ask
v, )
) Civil Action No. 00-2338 (RWR)
)
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION )
AGENCY, g FILED
" "Defendant. ) JAN 13 2001

Clerk. U.o. istrict Courg
?“ it of Cokambi
ORDER

Before the court is Plaintiff's Motion for Preliminary Injunction. Having considered

Aty 0Ppos;tion. Therets)

Plaintiff’s mation, and for good cause shown therein, the Court will grant the motion,
Accordingly, it is, this f?f‘ﬂay of January 2001, hereby
ORDERED that Landmark Legal Foundation’s application for preliminary injunction
relief is GRANTED, it is further
ifs & Kool
ORDERED that Environmental Protection Agency A enjoined from transporting,

removing or in any way tampering with information potentially responsive to Landmark Legal

Foundation’s Septemnber 7, 2000 Freedom of Information Act reques; M m‘ d-d.«—‘,
ﬁ"‘ The prareus ptalood weTle

United States District Judge
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V. ' . : Washington, D.C.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION : 9:47 a.m.
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Defendant. : &
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TRANSCRIPT OF TEMPORARY RESTRAE%@ﬁgmgggER
AND/OR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION HEARING
BEFORE THE HONORABLE ROYCE C. LAMBERTH
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

APPEARANCES :

For the Plaintiff: RICHARD PETER HUTCHINSON, ESQUIRE
LANDMARK LEGAL FOUNDATION
3100 Broadway
Suite 1110 -
Kansas City, Missouri 64111
(816) 931-5559
(Appearance via telephone)

For The Defendant: MICHAEL A. HUMPHREYS, ESQUIRE
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Room 10-812
Washington, D.C. 20044
4202) 514-7238

Court Reporter: THERESA M. SORENSEN, CVR-CM
Official Court Reporter
333 Constitutiomal Avenue, N.W.
Room 4808-B
Washington, D.C. 20001
(202) 273-0745

Pages 1 through 31

Proceedings reported by stenomask recording, transcript
produced by transcription.

M e M Camamnes PVROW Oficial Conirt Reoporter
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PROCEEDINGS

THE DEPUTY CLERK: This is'the matter of Landmark
Legal Foundation versus the EPA, Civil Action 2000-2338.
Mr. Butchinson for fhe plaintiffs, Mr. Humphreys for the
defendants.

THE COURT: All right, this is a hearings I'm
conducting as motions judge in the unavailability of the
assigned judge, Judge Roberts.

Mr. Hutchinson, the plaintiff's counsel, has
requested to participate by telephone, and is on the
speakerphone in the courtroom. The Court will hear the
plaintiff's motion foxr preliminary injunction. And
Mr. Humphreys representing the defendants is present.

Go ahead, Mr. Hutchinson.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Thank you, Your Honor. I
appreciate the accommodation in alléwing me to appear via
telephone. Due to the kind of last minute nature of this
hearing, it was almost impossible to get thereiﬁ& &

THE COURT: I tp}nk this is a hard weekend to get
reservations here.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Well, that's true, with the Ricky
Martin concert and all, it was going to be tough. But I
appreciate the accommedation.

THE COURT: You haven't seen our Washington Post

today ~but there's a great picture that Ricky got the

Thmcmes M Qarsneen (TWR.OIM. Official Courl Reporter
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President Elect up on the stage with him dancing, so it was

pretty good.

MR. HUTCHINSON: That must have been quite a sight.

1'11 have to get one of those and put it in my scrapbook.
Probabl? the first of many dances for the President Elect.

Unfortunately, the reason why we're here today is
related to the end of the administration, and that is that
for more that four and a-half months Landmark Legal
Foundation has been seeking information from the EPA
pursuant to a Freedom of Information Act request submitted
on September 7th.

Before I go too far into the chronology of the
thing, I think it's important as an overview both that since
late éeptember of the year 2000, Landmark has been engaged
with the EPA in on-going discussions back and forth, and
negotiation related to this FOIA request, in an effort to
obtain information and to make it -- and to facilitate the
EPA's compliance wit@nthe;request, and to resE?nd‘tgtits
concerns about the r@guest;‘Ppwever, we have been, despite
the filing of this iawsuit and negotiaticns which rendered
an agreement for proceeding in terms of a search for -- a
limited search for documents, we've been uqsuccessful in
getting a meaningful -- a meaningful response from the EPA.

T think that the Court need only look at the

footnete on page, I believe, seven of the defendant's

e eee BF Coimama OXTR AT Ol Clanret Renorter
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responée, which I received yesterday via facsimile at about
five o'clock to get a good feel for this situation.

In that footmote, a lot of good context here.

This lawsuit was filed because the EPA did not respond to
our Freedom of Information Act request, which was a request
for expedited consideration. There was no response to it at
all, and after the statutory deadline passed for response,
we filed this lawsuit. It was only at that time that we had
any contact from the EPA. At that point, and prior to the
time anm answer was due, the EPA was quite excited about
complying with the FOIA and working with us on a response.

As noted in both the motion and the response,
there was an effort by the EPA to have a conference call
prior to the answer deadline to address some issues. As the
matter was in litigation, Landmark declined a conference
call, but asked that their concerns be expressed in writing,
and that was done.

And the letter, as the Court will note in
reviewing it there in the exhibits, essentially said, "We
don't understand what you're asking for, but we think iE"has
something to do with these 88 regulations that are
attached." ‘

Landmark's response was, "Our FOIA request is very
straight forward. We do not believe we could make it any

more ~@lear."

M ceee N Ccamesn PXTR.OM Official Court Reporter
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Can you all hear me?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. HUTCHINSON: Okay, I heard a click. I didn't
know what that was.

The FOIA request sought, essentially -- I can read
this to the Court -- froﬁ Exhibit 1 of -- or Exhibit A of
plaintiff's motion, videntification of all rules or
regulati;ns for which public notice has not been given, but
which public notice is planned by the EPA between September
7, 2000, and January 20, 2001, including but not limited to
the rules and regulations reference in the attached news
articles.”

And the second point of the request was, "pProvide
us with the jdentification of third party contacts the EPA
has had relating to the regulations or proposed regulations
identified in the first step. "

Now, I still to this day do not know how that
could be more clear. Having said that, in a follow-up to
that discussion, and as required by the local rules, when
"the parties met to discuss the case, a settlement
conversation occurred which produced an agreement between
the parties.

The agreement essentially was that Landmark would
make an accommodation and allow the EPA to limit the scope

of its-search to the 88 pending regulations that the EPA had

™ A C OVR.OM Official Court Reporter
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identified as those it thought were responsive to the FOIA
request. Landmark's position was contingent on -- the
discussed reflected this, and a follow-up letter agreement
reflected this -- that the EPA would, within 7 days, provide
Landmark with an estimate of thé scope of the search, or an
estimate of the universe of responsive jnformation~ That
was in the context of a fee waiver request. Landmark wanted
a fee waiver. The EPA guestioned it.

The EPA.said, ne'll give you a good idea of what
the cost will be in seven days, because once we receive
assurances from Landmark that Landmark will pay for the
costs, we'll begin the search, and we'll be able to identify
in seven days a cost estimate." |

Now, that implied directly that within seven days
the EPA would have a pretty good idea of the universe of the
information out there responsive to the FOIA. Moreover, the
EPA gaid, through Mr. Hines, EPA's in-house counsel, that he
was quite confident that EPA ought to be able to provide
most, if not all, of the responsive information within 30
days. Landmark agreed to that, and put it in a letter and
sent it to the EPA. The EPA made comments, I think through
Mr. Humphreys, and via telephone conversations back and
forth. At the time I was at a CLA course and staying at a
hotel there in Washington. So we had conversations back and

forth.and through messages.

Theresa, M. Sorensen, CVR-GM, Official Court Reporter
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The suggested changes were put in the agreement
and sent back, and in accordance with the EPA's request,
that because of the intervening holidays, we mot date the”
letter as of Friday; the 16th of November. It was dated the
following Tuesday in order to accommodate for intervening
holidays. Now, that's lmportant because it reflected an
understanding that we were talking about calendar days and
not work days. Otherwise, it wouldn't have been important .
to put it off a few days.

Now, the agreeifent provided that the EPA would --
if they were not able to meet their obligation to provide
respongive information within 30 days, the EPA would notify
Landmark within 20 days, and they did not do that.

Now, we sent them a letter, sent a letter to their
counsel on the 15th of December and said, you know, the
deadline is looming, and we haven't heard anything, let
alone receive any. information, which the EPA agreed to

provide as we went along, and we wanted to know if they were

O
38

going to comply. i

Now, in Mr. Humphreys's YXespoOnse today, he says
that it's because Landmark did not send a copy of this
letter to EPA's counsel that it somehow relieves the EPA of
notice that this deadline was looming. But it does not.

It's not .our responsibility to communicate with the

government's client.

“Phocasa M Sareneen. OVR-CGM. Official Gourt Reporter
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Now, all of this is important because we have not
received any meaningful information in response to this FOIA
request, let alone in response to the agreement that was
made by the parties. Moreover, or in particular, we have
not received a single piece of paper from any office of a
senior political appointee at the EPA, which is the logical
place to look for information responsive to this FOIA
request. .
Now, we have largely unresponsive information from
Region 9, from an office there, a couple offices in Region
6, some offices in region 7, and -- but nothing from down
the hall the;e at EPA headquarters. And ever& time Landmark
has attempted to seek either a copy of -- & signed copy of
this égreement, first of all, or some assurange as to what
steps are being taken in terms of accomplishing this search,
we have been frustrated with either no response or an
inadequate response. In the EPA's letter of December 21,

- wherein they say -- gPeyagotify Landmark thathhey}{g not
going to be able to mset thg ;O—day deadline, thch they
claimed is 30 worki&g days, the EPA points cuf™that not all
offices had received Landmark's FOIA request. Despite that,
in the responée Eoday, the EPA represents, I believe,
through Ms. Person, that back in October all offices were

notified of this FOIA request. Now, which one is it, and

how conld.the EPA have intended to comply with the agreement

Tharees M Sorensen, GVR-CGM, Official Court Reporter
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reached here between the parties if it did not follow up
immediately by notifying all offices that thisvagreement was
in place and that the search should take place?

Now, all of this is by way of demonstrating how it
is Landmarks -- or it is clear from the record that the EPA
has no intention of complying with either this FOIA in a
timely way, or it's agreement to comply with -- or to carry
out the search in texrms of the limited scope agreed to by
the parties.

| Now, for the first time, yesterday when reviewing
the government's response here, the EPA has indicated that
the 88 regulations that they identified as responsive to our
request is actually 11 regulations. Now, they've never told
us that before, although we've asked for it. We've asked
for essentially, and the agreement called for progress
reports on this search,. we've not received anything akin to
that, and now for the first time they're telling us it's
actually only 11, but we're still not able to comply with
our agreement. That's in addition to their acknowledgment
that they failed to notify all of the offices of the search.
And perhaps most importantly, the information that is coming
through, which again, although it's from several offices, in
the grand scheme of the EPA it's almost a zero response, and
in terms éf actually responsive information, it's nothing.

There .is no. parent point person at EPA who is in charge of
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this search, who is in charge of gathering this information
and providing it to Landmark. It's all coming from all over
the country, and it's largely unresponsive, as I've said.”

Now, it is clear that EPA is not going to comply
with this FOIA search, and because the political appointees
who are the natural placés to look for this information,
because those pecple are gone as of noon COmMOXIOW, each
passing aéy has created a pressing and mofe imminent harm to
Landmark's ability to obtain information, and that goes to
the argument presented in the papers.

The govermment asserts that there is no haxrm here
for Landmark because there's an Archives Act that requires
the EPA to preserve information. That has absolutely
nothing to do with Landmark's ability to obtain that
jnformation. Aside from the fact that the government can't
tell us what they've looked at or where they're looking, or
anything along those lines, the government does not
represent in its response today that it can tell us any --
you know, who's in charge of‘tracking this information. It
- cannot tell us, or it does not tell us, who's in charge of
making sure that, or whether there has been an effort
undertaken to make.sure that potentially responsive
information is being kept together in such a way that can
reviewed and provided to Landmark. And I'd point the Court

to MaGhee versus CIA, and the Department of Justice versus
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Tax Analysts, two cases which support the proposition that

preservation alope does not satisfy FOIA, that when the
government move information and makes it either more
difficult or makes it so that it will take more time for the
requester to obtain information; then that is a violation of
FOIA, and that's exactly what we have going on herex That
point goes to Landmark's likelihood of success on the merits
in this case. We complied with the FOIA, and the government
ig frustrating the FOIA. Tt's plain and simple,'a;a it is
stralght forward.

Now, in terms of the harm to the agency, there's
none. And the government claims that there's no public
policy here, and that Landmark essentially presents a
boilerplate argument, but it is a boilerplate axrgument. Jhe
public does have a right to know what's going on, and the
public in particular has a right to know what third parties,
what outside forces are influencing political appointees at
the Environmental Protection Agency, and pushing them oI
influencing them in the enactment of regulations at the last
minute of an administration. So the public policy issue is
apparent. It's obvious, and that satisfies that requirement
for preliminary injunction.

Now, in terms of the relief that Landmark is
seeking today, although this administration ends tomorrow at

noon, _the harm being faced by Landmark does not end tomoLrow
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at noon. There is on-going relief available to the Court,
and that is, first of all, that the EPA ought to be required
to stop moving anything that's not been moved without the”
EPA's proving to thé Court that steps are being taken to
preserve the universe of information that's responsive to
our FOIA request; that the EPA can tell to Court exactly how
and what, and why, and when, and where it has undertaken a
search to identify these documents and other information,
including hard drives, e-mail, and all that sort of thing,
and we want the Court to regquire the EPA to comply with our
full FOIA request. We want to Court to require that the EPA
have a sinéle point of contact for carrying out this FOIA
request and implementing it, and we want the Court to
require the EPA to give us and the Court a full explanation
of what steps have been taken to identify respeonsive
information, to catalog responsive information, to seaxch

which offices and when, and provide that to the Court

posthaste. w
-~ I'd be glad to ;gspond to any questions the Court
) might have. I realize this is a -- kind of a long

explanation of what we're seeking here today and why, but
the circumstances ielated to this case are such that in our
effort -- in Landmark's effort to work with the EPA, we have
been met with frustration after frustration, in that

commitments are made, broken, and then complained about and
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made to look as though it were Landmark's fault. That is
not the case, and it should not be permitted by the Court.
Upon that, I'll cease. i

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Humphreys.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Good worning, Judge Lamberth.

T have with me at counsel table Betty Lopez of the
Environmental Protection Agency, a person who I can identify
as being responsible for this FOIA request.

Judge Lamberth, I'm going to ask you to deny the
plaintiff's motion for preliminary injunction in its
entirety, and there are several reasons for this. I'm going
to begin with the coptext that was first raised by
Mr. Hutchinson in his remarks to this Court, and I think
that the Court should view this in it's context.

This FOIA request first came in on September 7th
in the year 2000. As we've explained to this Court, and as
explained to counsel in moving papers, and as we explained
to counsel -- excuse me, before we filed our mpvingppapers,
this particular FOIAmfequesF yent to the wrong office. 5o
right off the bat tﬁere was a problem administratively.

They sent it to the Office of General Counsel. They should
have sent it to the FOIA contact person, and that FOIA
contact person, Judge Lamberth, is- clearly identified in EPA
regulations. So that was the first problem. We got --

. .THE COURT: Why did it take the agency from
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September 7th to September 26 to walk it over from the
General Counsel's Office to the proper FOIA person, and then
all FOIA person did was give it back to the Office of General
Counsel the next day?

MR. HUMPHREYS: That was a question --

THE COURT: Why would you lose all that time with
that bureaucratic shuffle?

MR. HUMPHREYS: That was a question that I did pose
to my client as recently as yesterday. They didn't really
have much of an explanation.

THE COURT: I'll bet they don't.

MR. HUMPHREYS: But what I can tell this Court,
Judge, is that when it did get to the appropriate person, the
very next day, on September 27th, we sent a letter to them
and said, "We've got your FOIA request, and we're going to
get right on top of it."

The next thing I want to --

THE COURT: Well, in getting right on top of it was
to give it back to the Office of General Counsel, and it took
another week before the Office of General Counsel tellé'the
FOIA person, "You've got to give it to everybody else, too,
not just to us.!

MR. HUMPHREYS: Right, and that -- _
THE COURT: So a whole month is lost on something

you have a statutory obligation to respond to in 10 days.
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Explain that.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, Judge, I'm not going to tell
you that this was a perfect response by the agency to the "
administrative request. They recognize that. I recognize
that. I'm not going to do a song and dance and say that
there weren't preblems with the request. But what I can’'say
is that we've clarified those problems. We have a person
installeé'now, Ms. Lopez, who I've brought to the courtroom
today. She has recently come onto the agency within the last
10 days, and she was brought onto this agency just to address
the type of concerns that have been raised in this case, and
she's going to be addressing those concerns.

But let me go back to the historical context,
Judge, because I think that's important as it relates to
this case, and this court makes a good point. I asked that
same precise question, why did it take three weeks, from the
2th to the 26th? Wag it in the same building? Why couldn't
it have been done? And I got the sort of like it was just
percolating through the bureéucracy. T don't accept that,
‘Judge. I don't suggest that this Court should accept that,
but that does not call for this Court to invoke its powers
extraordinary relief that's inherent with injunctions.

Let we contimue in an historical context of this,
Judge Lamberth. We wrote them a letter on October 26th.

Now, .thig.is -- first of all, once it got to the appropriate

Therssta M Sarcneen (TVR-CM. Official Court Revorter
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FOIA contact person on the 26th, the plaintiffs filed their
lawsuit three days later. It didn't make any other contact,
'and I'm not suggesting that they had an obligation to do
such a contact, Judge, but one would have thought that if
they wefe as interested in this request as they've suggested
they are, they would have made a contact. They went ahead
and filed their lawsuit, which was their right to do. We
responded to them the very next business day. We sent it to
the OGC, and the OGC took a week or two to make a‘d\
determination what the scope of this request is. Now, let
me move a month ahead to October 26th. Mr. Hutchinson has
made much ado about the fact that, sure, everybody
undexstood the nature of our request. Maybe the EPA was
jmbeciles for not understanding, but, Judge, I would suggest
to this Court -- I won't suggest, I will state out right --
that the regulations provide for just such a procedure you
are, just such an analysis. I would point this Court to 40
CFR 2.109, which says that if the agency has problems, if
they have issues, if thE§ have quesltions about that FOIA
request, they have a right and an cbligation to contact the
requester.

And I would just ask this Court, Judge, to look at
Exhibit 5, which is our letter of October 26th to the
requester, and Exhibit 6, which is their response. And I

would .agk this Court to draw its own conclusions about
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whether the letter that we sent to Landmark on the 26th in
this inaugural season -- let me coin é phrase -- was sent
for purpose of evasion, whether we were trying to do a soﬂg
and dance, whether we were trying to be evasive, whether we
were trying to be dilatory. That lettexr asked straight
forward questions about the scope of that request. We had
every right under the regulations to send such a letter.

Then I would ask this Court to look at Exhibit
Number 6. |

THE COURT: Well, before you go to that point,
there's a second mistake before then, and, that is, in your
affidavit you say that you overlocked initially the request
for treating this on an expedited basis.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: Then when that was discovered, you send
a letter October 4th asking for more information about why it
should be expedited.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Right. .
=y THE COURT: But you admit that you have no
regulationg to implement the procedures to expedite. So you
admit the agency is violating the statute right there.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, we --

THE COURT: So in the October 4th letter, the
agency has already violated the statute because they have no

procedures to expedite, right, what the statute requires?
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MR. HUMPHREYS: But I also believe that that
declaration says that there is a form letter that they
formulated that they did send out. So if there is --

THE COURT: Well, that you didn't provide to the
Court, so I don'é know what's in it.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Okay. I'm sorry. I'll see if we
have that. I don't think that we do, but there was a
standardized form that was sent out to them, to which as I
understand --

THE COURT: What is it that om the face of this
complaint, of this original request from September 7th, would
not show the need for it being expedited? I don't
understand. They say ﬁhe administration is leaving office.
We want to do this rigﬁt away. What else wou;d you need to
figure out that this should have been expedited? So besides
violating the statute there, I don't understand how you can
take the position that it shouldn't have been expediting

without any further inquiry once you knew that request had

B

been made and you knew the context of the request: Why isn't
.1 oo

that another violation? Y

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, Judge, the only thing I can
say is, again; what was communicated to me ;s that the person
who locked at this, who I believe was a FOIA official, didn't
catch it, and it wasn't cau§ht until John Hines, in the

office.of Genexal Counsel,. said, "This is an expedited
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request. You need to get on it right away." And, again,
Judge, I hate to --

THE COURT: Well, to "get on it right away" was to
ask the plaintiff to justify it; it wasn't to expedite it,
right?

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, that's an appropriate
procedure, I believe, for us to ask for --

THE COURT: What happens if it had been expedited?
Is there some procedure the agency would have that would have
made a difference in how this was handled if it was
expedited?

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, as I understand it, an
expedited request has to be done within 10 days, and if it
had been expedited, I believe that there just would have been
a response automatically. But there was apparently questions
that were raised about the initial request to -- the EPA
said, "We need further information," 8o a request was made to
the Landmark to provide them with further informatiom. And
so that's all I can say about that, Judge. As soon as we
caught it, we jumped right on it again, and we made the'péint
that we have to -- we have to get more information to them.
But I also note,.I believe, Judge, that they never responded
to that ~- that request for additional information. So,
Judge, I'm -- I'm standing up here before you, Judge, willing

to take my.lumps, but I don't want to take my luwps from this
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Court alone because they had things that they could ﬁaﬁé done
that they refused to do, for whatever reason.

Let me jump ahead if I've satisfied this Court to
the October 26th letter. Once again I'm going to ask this
Court to read our letter to see if it's nasty, if it's
evasive, whether we're tr&ing to do something dilatory. We
haven't.

-’Then read Exhibit 6 of our -- that's attached to
your motion, and read their response, and I'd ask that this .
Court loock at the tone as much of the words, which is, hey.,
we should have known better. We should know better. We're
not going to clarify it any more, and that's that. That
Just did mot help the process along. BSo, I mean, that's
more or less the context.

One other thing I -- he said so much here, I'm
trying to get everything that I put in my notes. There is a
regulation, by the way, that reguires the requester to
submit it to the appropriate FOIA authority, but I think,
you know, Judge, we'rxe beyond.that point. I agree With you,
that it shouldn't have taken three weeks once it was sent to
the wrong place. We should have done it quicker. It will
be done quicker. In any event, in my mind, Judge, I would
argue a very reasonable and logical position, assuming that
we were wrong in that, that doesn't necessitate this Court

invoking its extraordinary equitable powers.
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The Court -- I mean, the EPA has an orderly and
organized system that we have put in place pursuant to these
.regulations -- to regulations, and notwithstanding what
Mr. Hutchinson says, those requlations are very much
relevant, and they're very much épplicable to the facts of
this case. There are regulations that, if I can --~that
have been attached to our brief, and, specifically, to the
O'Donnell declaration. Exhibit A of the O'Donnell
declaration deals with regulations, standards and’
guidelines. That's precisely what we're talking about here
today. I'd ask that this Court read Exhibit A in
conjunction with Exhibit B, which deals with the rule-making
dockets. Taken together, these are permanent records. That
means, if you read A and B, Judge, and I'll tell you what_it
means, understanding that that's my job, that the agency
maintains these records for 20 yores, the very records that
are at issue in this litigation. After that 20-year period,
then they are still warehoused in the archives center.

As it relates to a FOIA request, again, a part of
the O0'Donnell declaration, she refers this Court in her
declaration to Exhibit C. That goes to FOIA, Freedom of
Information requesgst fileg. Those request files, when you
read the exhibit, and this is an actual scheduled -- actual
rule-making schedule, that document says that if there is an

uncontested request and we respond to that request, we still
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hold on to the information for two years. If there is a
challenge, then we hold onto it for six years to give a
requester such as Landmark an opportunity to prosecute and
appeal.

But let me talk about, Judge, now that we've set
the context, I want to focus in a little bit on the |
gpecifics of the reason why we're here today.

First of all, I believe, as I read the moving
papers of Landmark, and I lock at page 8 of their motion,'I
believe that the scope of~this particular motion and this
particular hearing, on the last sentence of page 3 they say,
"Landmark is simply requesting the Court to preserve the
status quo by granting this motion, thereby making it easier
for the EPA to respond to plaintiff's FOIA's request, and
for the plaintiff and the Court to evaluate EPA'Ss response."

Now, Mr. Hutchinson adds wittingly, or

unwittingly, sort of attempted to intertwine the two, the

i

subsequent request with what the real reason that I beglieve

et

sl

=y that we're here today. He:g saying essentially, Judge, as I
read this motion, "Judge, stop the process so no one walks
off in the middle of the night with EPA documents that are
under consideratién."

T'd ask that this Couxrt not confuse the original

request and the purpose of this motion. He already has a

legal remedy in terms of the substantive FOIA aspects of
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this case. If in fact the basis of his request, Judge
Lamberth is to say "Look, we're concerned by this
transition, and what may happen as a result of the "
circumstances of this transition, and documents may be
spirited away, or taken away, or burned, or destroyed, or
stuffed in briefcases, that sort of éhing. I've already
told this Court, or argue to this Court that there are three
regulations that absolutely preclude that. He --

THE COURT: If ;hat is so clear, and if agency
officials understood it that clearly, what was the purpose of
the January 2nd e-mail?

MR. HUMPHREYS: Could you give me the substance of
what that e-mail was?

THE COURT: Well, you filed it with me. You didm't
file the e-mail, but you put it in the affidavit of --

MR. HUMPHREYS: Is that the Lopez e-mail?

THE COURT: Let me see who -- no, Ms. Person said
on January 2nd she sent by E mail the followinq statement to
all of the FOIA coordééators or offices which éke responding
to the request, and éhé put i; there all this,'stuff about,
"make sure during this time of transition that all responsive
records are handled.correctly and appropriately preserved."

MR. HUMPHREYS: Right. |

THE COURT: If it's so clear, as you say, from

these NARA and other regulations that these have to be

e o~ FATTY FOANE e 8 - m



06/26/2001 TUE 13:14 FAX 2023543382 U.5.DINIKILL LUUKLD

B ViasX

24

preserved, what was the point of that e-mail?

MR. HUMPHREYS: And I would point this Court,
before I answer that guestion, to another e-mail that B
reinforeces that point. I would refer this Court to Exhibit
Number 7, I believe, the Lopez declaration, ox the Lopez
e-mail, which more or less says the same thing, and that's
{identified as nuwber 7. If you look at Exhibit No. 7, and
look at the second page of that, which actually comes from a
very high official, a Mary Anne Frolich, in the agency, she
says more or less the same thing. But, Judgg, I would submit
to you that that's of course our point, that we're going out
of our way, even though there are regulations that tell us
what to do specifically, out of an abundance of caution, as
we like to say in the law, let's follow this up with e-mails
to everybody that say, "Just in case you're unaware of these
regulations, we are telling to you stop. We are telliné you
not to tamper with these documents. We are telling you not
to remove these documents." So 1 would argue that those
e-mails support our position, tha£ we where being diligent,
that we weren't just going to say, "Well, the regs are out
there, and either the bureaucrats know them or they don't,
and let the chips fall where they may." We said, "No, let's
send out the e-mail to back up these regs to make sure that
- if there is any question, that they are not tampered with."

- Judge, can I talk to you just a minute about the
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likelihood of success on the merite in the this casef )

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. HUMPHREYS: This case can't succeed, Judge -
Lamberth. Do you know what the core of their argument is
based upon? The core of their argument is based upon Exhibit
F of their motion, which is a news report. Now, outside of
the fact -- and tbis news report suggests that --

JTHE COURT: I know, that deals with the Whitehouse.

MR. HUMPHREYS: That deals with the Whitehouse.

THE COURT: I agree, that doesn't have anything to
do with this. I agree.

MR. HUMPHREYS: It has nothing whatsoever --

THE COURT: I took it their motion dealt with, they
have been so mistreated by EPA, with so many violatiens of
the procedure and then the agreement here, that EPA can't be
trusted to preserve these recoxrds. I toock it that's what
they're saying.

.MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, again, my response --

THE COURT: Without'a Court order, that EPA can't
be trusted on its own without a Court order that then
threatens contempt.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, and my response to that is
essentially this: We've told this Court about the
regulations. I'm going to introduce, and I'm going to talk a

little .bit about Ms. Lopez, and I'm happy to put her on the
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stand. 1 don't think that's going to be necessary, but I'm
happy to do that if the Court wants. She's going to tell you
a couple of things if she were put on the stand. Let me riake
her proffer for you. She's been there. She's been at EPA
for 12 days. As soon as she caﬁe on, this was thrown on her
lap. She came from an agency, the SEC, where she &id a lot
of FOIA woxk. She was brought in as an expert. The agency
recognized that it had a problem. They asked Ms. Lopez to
take the bull by the horns. Since she has come dﬁhboard, she
has worked virtually non-stop on this case bringing it up to
par. Judge, I recognize that there are problems with this
administratively, and I'm going to ask you --

i THE COURT: Well, why did they give the estimate on
November 21gt, then -- the agreement is dated November _
21st ~--

MR. HUMPHREYQ: The estimate --

THE COURT: -- that they could do this in 30 days,
and they still have done virtually nothing, and they said
they would do a rolliné’production, and they haven't rolled
anything except these minimal things he talked about today?

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, there has been -- there has
been a submission, or a deliveraﬁce, or surrender of files to
the plaintiff. There have been approximately 1500 documents
that have been given to him. Now, he says that they're not

relevgnt, but a lot of that has to go to, again, if we had

Tt N Qa OCXTR AL NMffiaial Manee R anrnvran




UD/ L0/ 4UUL LUE LJILD FAA ZUZ3543382 U.S.DISTRICT COURTS

LN

ido27

27

had the request refined early on, these problems_would not
have arisen. We are continuing to make progress in this --
in this FOTA request. -

THE COURT: Well, how did they come up with this
30-day estimate, and then they can't meet what they
estimated? Why would they make a 30-day estimate if they had
no idea how long it was going to take? Explain all that to
me.

MR. HUMPHREYS: You know, Judge, there are cerféin-
things that they don't p¥epare you for in law school. I
asked the -- I'm going to admit, Judge, that I was a part of
that Novemﬁer 16th phone conference with Mr. Hutchinson,
where I looked to the client and I said, you know, "This can
be done?" And the client said that it could be done. They
came back later and said that the request was more expansive,
it was broader. Now, Judge, in it's worst case scenario, you
may want to characterize that as ineptitude. I hope you
don't, but it certainly does not rise to the 1ey3}, Judge
Lamberth, of you saying, Sg'm going to punish you by imposing
equitable sanctions on you."

What I can do is, I can make representations to
this Court, and the c¢lient has authorize& me to do it on the
record, that, number one, the bottom line, Judge, everything
is going to be done by February lé6th. And that's

appraximately less than a month from nmow. Now, T've asked
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them and I've re-asked them. I've asked them in any variety
of ways. I said, "I cannot go to the Court -- we've changed
the schedule a couple of times --'I camnnot go to the Courf
and make this representation, that it's going to be done by
16%h, if ik can'ﬁ be done."

You can look. at --

THE COURT: But you came with the Court with that
November agreement, which you filed with the Court, and sgaid
it could be done in 30 days from November 21st. And whatever
you put in your footmote about the agency thought it was
business days, there's certainly no way the Court, loocking at
that, would have thought it was business days, and the
) plaintiffs certainly ﬁave a good argument that there's no way
they would have knowﬁ it was business days. So it was
December 21th lst. That's far different than now saying you
need three times that much time to --

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, we need until February
16th --

THE COURT:“\Thathq three times as muéh time as they
estimated in N0vembér. They estimated 30 day€™then. Now
you're saying it will take 90 days. And if they had
expedited it, it had to be done in 10 days, but they
improperly didn't expedite it.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, one of the reasons we need

this .additional time --

faall ae AEIT AL e s B Y
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THE COURT: 1I'll tell you, I don't think there is
anything else you can say that isg going to keep me from
entering this preliminary injunction. I think in light of
all of the violations that we've talked about here, the Court
should not give the pPresumption of regularity to.the agency
to think that‘the agency will carry out its duties here. The
plaintiff's motion for a preliminary injunction is granted.
The Court will order that the agency takes steps to ensure
the preservation of any of this information. I'll issue a
written order this afternoon based on the hearing we've had
today.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Okay.

' : THE COURT: 'The EPA is enjoined from transporting,
removing, or in any way .tampering with any information
potentially responsive to Landmark Legal Foundation's
September 7th FOIA request.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Okay. Now, is that -- I want to
get clarity from the Court. You've said that -- if you would
just read that order, Judge, one more time.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm reading their motion £rom
their proposed order. The only thing I may add to their
proposed order is "EPA and its agents and officials, " to make
sure that people understand they're personally accountable to
the extenﬁ they learn of the order.

-~- MR. HUMPHREYS: All right. So the extent of the
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order is basically just not to move, or tamper, or traﬁsport
the documents?

THE COURT: Right.

MR. HUMPHREYS: And that's the extent of it?

THE COURT: Right, pending further order of the
court. = |

MR. HUMPHREYS: Well, thank you very much, Judge.

—'THE COURT: TI'll consult with Judge Roberts about
whether he wants to keep the case or whether he's going to
transfer the case, but that's all I need to do for today.

Anything else the plaintiff wants to say?

MR. HUTCHINSON: Not at this time, Your Honor.

:\ Thank you. And is there a -- will you be adding the language
that you --

THE COURT: Yes. 1I'll have a written order
shortly. I've got another hearing with 34 lawyers in the
next courtroom I've got to go do, but as soon as I finish it,
i'll bé back.

MR. HUMPHREYS: Judge, could I ask the Court's
indulgence -- I know you're in a hurry -- for just 30
seconds? T don't have a copy of that order. I'd like to
maybe comment on it. I'm not so sure I will, but I just want
to make sure -- I want to get clarification since this Court
has ruled against the égency.

.~- . THE COURT: Right.

Thcnin M Qucviiience. FAXTD AL NGRS AT Favses 12 aemed e
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MR. HUMPHREYS: The Court's indulgence for just a

motion.
(Brief pause in proceedings.)

MR. HUMPHREY;S: Judge, I can live with this order.
THE COURT: All right:
MR. HUMPHREYS: Thank you very much. ~
THE COURT: All right.
(Whereupon, the proceedings in the above~entitled matter

were adjourned at 10:27 a.m.)‘ CY
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